ORBAY
COUNCIL ""'
Wednesday, 31 July 2019

4 LICENSING COMMITTEE N\

A meeting of Licensing Committee will be held on
Thursday, 8 August 2019

commencing at 9.30 am

The meeting will be held in the Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus,
K Torquay, TO1 3DR /

Members of the Committee

Councillor Amil
Councillor Foster
Councillor Atiya-Alla
Councillor Kavanagh
Councillor Brown
Councillor Barbara Lewis
Councillor Cowell
Councillor Mills
Councillor Mandy Darling
Councillor Pentney
Councillor Dart
Councillor Sykes
Councillor Doggett
Councillor John Thomas
Councillor Ellery

A prosperous and healthy Torbay

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or
language please contact:
Lisa Antrobus, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR
01803 207087
Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk
www.torbay.gov.uk

(1)



mailto:governance.support@torbay.gov.uk
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/

LICENSING COMMITTEE
AGENDA

1. Election of Chairman/woman
To elect a Chairman/woman for the 2019/2020 Municipal Year.

2. Appointment of Vice-Chairman/woman
To appoint a Vice-Chairman for the 2019/2020 Municipal Year.

3. Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence, including notifications of any
changes to the membership of the Committee.

4, Minutes (Pages 4 - 5)
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of this
Committee held on 22 November 2018.

5. Declarations of interest

(a) To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of
items on this agenda

For reference: Having declared their non pecuniary interest
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the
matter in question. A completed disclosure of interests form should
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting.

(b) To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect
of items on this agenda

For reference: Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the
item. However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter. A
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting.

(Please Note: If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.)

6. Urgent items
To consider any other items that the Chairman decides are urgent

7. Hackney Carriage Tariff Increase (Pages 6 - 12)
To consider a report that details a request from the Torbay Licensed
Taxi Association to increase the maximum fare tariff in respect of
Hackney Carriages in Torbay.

(2)



10.

Pavement Cafe Policy (Pages 13 - 42)
To consider a report that seeks agreement of a revised Pavement
Cafe Policy.

Delegated Decision Report - Licensing Act 2003 (Pages 43 - 46)
To note a report on decision made by officers under delegated

powers.

Delegated Decision Report - Gambling Act 2005 (Pages 47 - 50)

To note a report on the decisions made by officers under delegated
powers.

®3)



Agenda Item 4

ORBAY
COUNCIL iy

Minutes of the Licensing Committee
22 November 2018
- Present :-

Councillor Thomas (J) (Chairman)

Councillors Brooks, Excell, Lewis (B), Stubley, Tolchard and Lewis (C)

58.

59.

60.

Apologies

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Manning, Mills, Pentney,
Stocks and Sykes.

It was reported that, in accordance with the wishes of the Conservative Group, the
membership of the Committee had been amended for this meeting by including
Councillor Lewis (C) instead of Councillor Thomas (D).

Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held on 1 November 2018
were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman subject to
Councillor Lewis (B) apology for absence being recorded.

Gambling Act 2005 'Statement of Principles 2019' (Gambling Policy)

Members considered a report that set out the representations that had been
received as a result of the consultation that was undertaken on the Statement of
Principles 2019 (Gambling Policy). The Principal Licensing Officer informed
Members that all operators were directly contacted as part of the consultation
process. However only one representation had been received which was a partial
response, answering three questions relating to Unlicensed Family Entertainment
Centres. There were no representations against the draft Statement of Principles
2019 (Gambling Policy) therefore Officers had not proposed any changes to the
draft previously considered by the Licensing Committee on 19 July 2018.

Resolved:

)] That the Licensing Committee supports the proposed Statement of
Principles 2019 as set out in in Appendix 1 to the submitted report; and

1)) That Council be recommended to:
a) approve the Statement of Principles 2019 (Gambling Policy), and

b) that the Statement of Principles 2019(Gambling Policy) take effect
from 30 January 20109.

Page 4



Licensing Committee Thursday, 22 November 2018

61.

62.

Delegated Decisions Report - Licensing Act 2003

Members noted the report that informed them of the decisions taken in relation to
Licensing Act 2003 applications by the Assistant Director Community Services
under delegated powers.

Delegated Powers Report - Gambling Act 2005

Members noted the report that informed Members of the decisions taken in

relation to Grambling Act 2005 applications in Torbay by the Assistant Director
Community Services under delegated powers.

Chairman/woman

Page 5



Agenda ltem 7

ORBAY

COUNCIL -

Briefing Report Public Agenda Item: Yes
No:

Title: Hackney Carriage Tariff Increase

Wards All
Affected:

To: Licensing Committee On: 8t August 2019

Contact Officer: Gary O’Shea
Telephone: 01803 207631
Y8 E.mail: Gary.oshea@torbay.gov.uk

1. What we are trying to achieve

1.1  This report follows a request from the Torbay Licensed Taxi Association to
increase the maximum fare tariff in respect of all Hackney Carriages in Torbay.

2. Recommendation(s) for decision

2.1 Thatthe appropriate Public Notices are placed to advertise the requested increase
in the maximum Hackney Carriage Fare Scale, as shown in Appendix 1.

2.2  That any responses to the Public Notice be considered by the Licensing Sub-
Committee.

2.3 Inthe event that no objections are received, the new tariff will take effect from the
15t October 2019.

3. Key points and reasons for recommendations

3.1  Under the terms of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, a
Local Licensing Authority may determine the maximum level of charges to be
levied by all Hackney Carriages operating under its control.

3.2 A request has been received from the Torbay Licensed Taxi Association for an
increase in the maximum tariff as laid out in Appendix 1. Although the Torbay
Licensed Taxi Association is a representative of the Hackney Carriage trade in
Torbay, albeit not all those licensed are members of the Association, although any
increase would apply to all licensed Hackney Carriage vehicles.

3.3 It will be necessary to advertise the proposals by way of Public Notice for 14 days
and in the event that objections are received, these responses must be considered
by the Licensing Sub-Committee before any increase can take effect. If no
objections are received, the new fares tariff will commence from 15t October 2019.

Page 6



For more detailed information on this proposal please refer to Appendix A.

Steve Cox
Environmental Health Manager (Commercial)

Page 7



Annex A — Supporting information to Report

Al.

Al.l

Al.2

Al3

Al4

Al.5

Al.6

Al.7

A2.

A2.1

Introduction and history

Under the terms of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, a
Local Licensing Authority may determine the maximum level of charges to be
levied by all Hackney Carriages operating under its control. Fares have been so
determined for many years, with regular reviews.

A request has been received from the Torbay Licensed Taxi Association for an
increase in the maximum tariff as laid out in Appendix 1. Although the Torbay
Licensed Taxi Association is a representative of the Hackney Carriage trade in
Torbay, albeit not all those licensed are members of the Association, although any
increase would apply to all licensed Hackney Carriage vehicles.

The proposed request is that:

Tariff 1 journeys be charged at £3.30 for the first 470 yards (430 metres) or part
thereof. Thisis an increase in the initial charge of 30p over the current tariff. Tariff
1 is applicable for all hiring’s made between 7 am and 11 pm on any day except
Sundays and Bank Holidays.

Tariff 2 journeys to be charged at £3.60 for the first 470 yards (430 metres) or part
thereof. This is an increase in the initial charge of 30p over the current tariff. Tariff
2 relates to journeys at all other times, including night times, Sundays, Bank
Holidays, Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve.

The last increase in fares was three years ago and came in to force on 15t July
2016. Details of the current charges are shown in Appendix 2.

By way of national benchmarking Private Hire and Taxi Monthly magazine (PHTM)
advertises the current tariff of all 362 Licensing Authorities. In a table of
comparison over a two mile journey, the most expensive tariff is London Heathrow
at £10.60 and the cheapest Newcastle-Under-Lime at £4.30.

Torbay is currently 94™ on the list and 4" out of all Devon Authorities. The current
two mile tariff for Torbay is £6.39, which means that the increase will take this to
£6.69 (position 51 on the comparison chart).

28 Authorities have increased tariffs in 2019, a further 82 increased their tariffs in
2018 and 53 in 2017.

It will be necessary to advertise the proposals by way of Public Notice for 14 days
and in the event that objections are received, these responses must be considered
by the Licensing Sub-Committee before any increase can take effect. If no
objections are received, the new fares tariff will commence from 15t October 2019.
There is no right of appeal to the decision.

Risk assessment of preferred option

Outline of significant key risks

Page 8



There are no significant risks.

A3. Options

A3.1 The other options are to refuse the proposed fare increase or to ask the Torbay
Licensed Taxi Association for additional information, to assist in making a
determination.

A4. Summary of resource implications

A4.1 There are no resource implications for the Council

A5.  What impact will there be on equalities, environmental sustainability and
crime and disorder?

A5.1 There are no equalities, environmental sustainability or crime and disorder issues.

A6. Consultation and Customer Focus

A6.1 There has been no public consultation, to date, but one is required as part of the
procedures before the fare increase can come in to effect.

A7. Arethere any implications for other Business Units?

A7.1 There are no significant implications for other business units.

Appendices

Appendix 1 Copy of the Tariff increase request from Torbay Licensed Taxi Association

Appendix 2 Summary of Current Charges from 15t Jul 2016

Documents available in members’ rooms

None

Background Papers:

The following documents/files were used to compile this report:

PHTM magazine (July 2019 edition) comparison chart

Page 9



Page 10



Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

Dear Licensing

Proposal for Tariff Increase

As discussed please find below Proposal for tariff increases:

TARIFF 1 - Initial charge to be £3.30 for the first 470 yards (430 metres) or part thereof and
15p for each subsequent 135 yards (123 metres) or part thereof, and waiting time to be
charged at 15p for each 40 seconds.

TARIFF 2 - Initial charge to be £3.60 for the first 470 yards (430 metres) or part thereof and
20p for each subsequent 135 yards (123 metres) or part thereof, and waiting time to be
charged at 20p for each 40 seconds.

This request has been made following a meeting of the Torbay Licensed Taxi Association
and it would be very much appreciated if this could be put forward to the Licensing
Committee for consideration.

Kind Regards

Jud Boyle
Chairman Torbay Licensed Taxi Association

Page 11



Existing Maximum Hackney
Carriage Fare Scale as approved
with effect from 15t July 2016:

Tariff 1 —

Initial charge of £3.00 for the first 470
yards (430 metres), or part thereof,
then 15p for each subsequent 135
yards (123 metres), or part thereof,
and waiting time to be charged at 15p
for each 40 seconds;

Tariff 2 —

Initial charge of £3.30 for the first 470
yards (430 metres), or part thereof,
then 20p for each subsequent 135
yards (123 metres), or part thereof,
and waiting time to be charged at 18p
for each 40 seconds;

And

Additional charges —

20p for each additional passenger,
50p call out charge

£50 for any fouling of the hackney
carriage.

No additional charges will be made for
luggage, perambulators, pushchairs,
wheeled trolleys or animals.

Page 12

Agenda Iltem 7
Appendix 2



Agenda Item 8

ORBAY

COUNCIL g~

Report No: Public Agenda Item: Yes

Title: Pavement Café Policy

Wards All
Affected:

To: Licensing Committee On: 8th August 2018

Key Decision: Yes

Change to No Change to No
Budget: Policy
Framework:

Contact Officer. Gary O’Shea
Telephone: 01803 207931
Y8 E.mail: Gary.oshea@torbay.gov.uk

1. What we are trying to achieve

1.1 Members are requested to agree, following consultation, a revised Pavement Café
Policy.

2. Recommendation(s) for decision

2.1 That the Licensing Committee agrees the Pavement Café Policy 2019-24 as
attached at appendix 1, is adopted with immediate effect.

3. Key points and reasons for recommendations

3.1 Under the provisions of the Highways Act 1980 as amended by the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, Torbay Council is the Licensing
Authority in respect of Pavement Café Licences.

3.2 The licensing of Pavement Cafés has been administered by the Licensing Team
since the 18™ February 2016. The proposed review of the Policy is attached at
Appendix 1 and is brought about in order to improve efficiencies and to enable
the Licensing Authority to improve compliance across the board. The Highways
Team will remain a consultee to this process.

forward thinking, people orientated, adaptable - always with integrity.

Page 13



3.3 The draft document has undergone a six week consultation with partner agencies,
i.e. Highways, The Police, Public Nuisance Officer as well as the current
Pavement Café Licence holders. It has also been published on the Council
website so as the general public may have opportunity to respond.

3.4  The revised Pavement Café Policy 2019-24 will have limited impact on current
Pavement Café Licence holders, other than where they have failed to pay their
annual fee, in which case it is proposed that after suitable warning a permit may
be revoked in the event that a fee remains unpaid.

3.6 There is a risk of a challenge to this policy, which would be by way of judicial
review. This however is considered unlikely.

For more detailed information on this proposal please refer to Annex A.

Steve Cox
Environmental Health Manager (Commercial)

Page 14



Annex A — Supporting information to Report

Al.

Al.l

Al.2

Al3

Introduction and history

Under the provisions of the Highways Act 1980 as amended by the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, Torbay Council is the Licensing
Authority in respect of Pavement Café Licences.

The licensing of Pavement Cafés has been administered by the Licensing Team
since the 18™ February 2016. The proposed review of the Policy is attached at
Appendix 1 and is brought about in order to improve efficiencies and to enable
the Licensing Authority to improve compliance across the board. The Highways
team will remain a consultee to this process.

There are relatively few changes to the revised Policy, however, some
amendments have been considered necessary. These are outlined below.

Section 6

An increase in busy areas (whether traffic or high footfall) of the minimum
unobstructed pavement space that should be left available once tables and chairs
are in place, from 1.8 metres to 2.0 metres. This change comes about following
the publication of government guidance relating to mobility, where it states:

‘A clear width of 2000mm allows two wheelchairs to pass one another
comfortably. This should be regarded as the minimum under normal
circumstances. Where this is not possible because of physical constraints
1500mm could be regarded as the minimum acceptable under most
circumstances, giving sufficient space for a wheelchair user and a walker to pass
one another. The absolute minimum, where there is an obstacle, should be
1000mm clear space. The maximum length of restricted width should be 6 metres
(see also Section 8.3). If there are local restrictions or obstacles causing this sort
of reduction in width they should be grouped in a logical and regular pattern to
assist visually impaired people”.

Section 7

A clarification of the position relating to the suspension of a Pavement Café Permit
on a temporary basis due to a ‘one off’ event or situation’, whilst not exhaustive,
this may potentially include a national celebration or a requirement to access the
area for emergency or essential repairs. This is not intended to open the possibility
that regular suspension of a permit would be imposed and is unlikely, in most
cases, to occur at all.

Section 9

This represents the main reason for update to the Policy. Permits are issued in
perpetuity, with a requirement that an annual fee is paid. Non-payment of the
annual fee is a civil debt. Currently there are a significant minority of premises
where the annual fee remains unpaid, this is not only a drain on Council resources
but is also grossly unfair on those businesses that fulfil their obligations.

This section is therefore introduced in order to permit the revocation of a permit
where the annual fee remains unpaid for a period in excess of 14 days after it falls
due and to introduce a process for dealing with Pavement Cafes where there has
been no application at all for a permit to be granted.

Page 15



Al.4

Al5

A2.

A2.1

A3.

A3.1

A4.

A4.1

AS5.

A5.1

AG.

A6.1

A6.2

The times of opening Pavement Café designated areas, will remain the same,
being from 1000 to 2300, though these can be extended by the applicant with the
agreement of the consultees, notably Highways, the Police and Public Nuisance
officer. No Pavement Café Licence will be issued after midnight however.

In addition to the alterations highlighted in A1.3 (above), there has been a general
updating of the Pavement café conditions.

Risk assessment of preferred option

Outline of significant key risks

The revised Pavement Café Policy does not alter the operation of a Pavement
Café Licensed area. The key risk is a judicial review, though this is not considered
likely given that consultation has taken place as identified below.

Options

There are two alternative options other than that recommended:

(1) Members alter the policy then agree the amended policy.

(i) Members refuse the recommendation.

Summary of resource implications

The only resources will come from existing budgets and will mainly involve seeking
to ensure that unlicensed operators are brought within the licensing regime and in
pursuing debts from unpaid annual fees. However in both cases they are likely to
result in either additional income or in collecting income that otherwise may not
have been paid through the annual fee.

What impact will there be on equalities, environmental sustainability and
crime and disorder?

There are no equality, sustainability or crime and disorder issues regarding this
report.

Consultation and Customer Focus

There has been consultation with all current Pavement Café Licence holders and
the key partners.

Following the consultation there were no comments from any key partners,
although in all cases these remain consultees with regard to applications received.
There were three responses from existing licence holders which were broadly in
agreement with the changes and are summarised at Appendix 2.

There are no proposed changes to the draft Policy stemming from the consultation
responses.

Page 16



A7. Arethere any implications for other Business Units?

A7.1 There are no significant implications for other business units, if the
recommendations are supported.

Annexes
Appendix 1 Draft Pavement Café Policy 2016-21
Appendix 2 Consultation Response Summary

Documents available in members’ rooms

None

Background Papers:

The following documents/files were used to compile this report:

None

Page 17



Agenda Iltem 8
Appendix 1

“ﬁf“ju ll E

Page 18



Page 19




Contents

Iltem Page
1 | Table of Contents 2
2 | Introduction 3
3 | Map of Torbay 4
4 | Guiding Principles 5
5 | Legislative Considerations 5
6 | Pavement Café Licences — Application Standards 7
(i) Design & Layout 7
(i) Boundary & Means of Enclosure 9
(i) Furniture 10
(iv) Advertising 11
(v) Management of Pavement Cafés 12
(vi) Environmental Considerations 12
(vii) Smoke free 13
(viii) Hours of Operation 14
7 | Grant of a Pavement Café Licence & Licence Conditions 14
8 | Appeals 15
9 | Enforcement 15
10 | Contacts 15
Appendices
1 | Site Notice 16
2 | Sample Pavement Café Licence Conditions 20
3 | Flow chart for music & licences required

The ‘Pavement Cafe Licensing Policy’ 2019-2024’ was ratified and adopted by the Licensing
Committee on the xx July 2019

Page 20



Introduction

Torbay Council (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Council’) has developed this Policy with a view to
promoting the use of Pavement Cafés in our area and to establish a benchmark of good practice.

Torbay is a popular well-established holiday destination situated on the South Devon Coast, on
the South West peninsular of England. It has a population of over 130,000 which can increase to
over 200,000 in the summer months. The area comprises of the three towns of Torquay, Paignton
and Brixham, and is known for its mild climate, picturesque harbours, coves and beaches, and is
home to numerous tourist attractions.

The Council is aware that Pavement Cafés are increasingly popular and wishes to regulate their
operation so that they can add vitality to, and help maximise the use of our public spaces for
people, boost the local economy and add to the complement of facilities available to those living,
working and visiting our area.

Application forms, which include contact details for named consultees, are available to view and
download from the Council’s website.

Page 21



MAP of TORBAY

From From Teignmouth & -,
Etornd s i
eter an: - ;

Abbotskerswell Herring Cove

Mackerel Cove

N Maidencombe .+
. Maidencombe Beach
A380 - :
R Y
Kingskerswell .

atcombe Beach

Petit Tor Beach

> Cadewell St. Marychurc Oddicombe Beach
”
P pr Shiphay Babbacombe Beach
o B3198 83,
y %
1 5 Redgate
. Upton @ Babbacombe Besch
\ Ansteys Covi
Y TORRE B3202 3 ¥ Gove
:
'." Chelston Ellacombe
Cockingt’ Y% PYACH]
g
Marldon F ﬂ AY Wellswood
3
= Meadfoot
: Bea THATCHER
% POINT
G Daddyhole Cove THATCHER ROCK &
: -
’___x"'-" Hollicombe
e Preston Basch
5
“
g PAIGNTON / /...
ot < Sands
: ) 1 Mile
H Paignton 0 |—.—'
PAIGNT Pier i
* Paignton
" From Sands
i Totnes & ?g‘
: &3
H
'Q
.l
s
e LT » | Goodrington
:_ Goo
i
< )
e s \ Whiterock
.I
--.‘«'- -'s...""'-"'-
i Broadsands | UIRSTON
Stoke Gabriel FER RS
5

POINT Fishcombe The BR'XHAM
Spwy Beach Breakwater
Brixham
Marina

shoalstone BERRY
Pool & Beach HEAD

o
TON
® CHURSTO
5 * Churston
B ¢ Ferrers
o
e’ St. Mary's
. ~ St. Mary's
* ‘- Q" Bay
L] . '5“'
° ‘.‘ <
L ] .
L) Yo SHARKHAM
: ._.? Hillhead ',---"~._.--‘ POINT

" .., &
.. From Dartmouth Via Car Ferry ~===*

Torbay Council | Pavement Cafe Licensing Policy 2019 to 2024



4. Guiding Principles

For the purposes of this Policy, Pavement Cafés consist of tables and chairs placed on the public
highway where food and/or beverages are served by way of table service to the outside area.
Applications for Pavement Café Licences will usually relate to an existing cafe, catering
establishment and/or premises regulated under the Licensing Act 2003; however, it is possible
for applications to be submitted in respect of premises which are to be built or are in the process
of structural conversion. Applications that result in a significant increase in the overall size of the
existing premises may require increased facilities. For example: adequate storage space for
tables and chairs when not in use, a kitchen which is suitably equipped, increased toilet provision.
Please note, these examples are not exhaustive and an application will be decided on its own
merits.

Whilst wishing to encourage the provision of Pavement Cafés within Torbay, the Council
recognises that public highways exist principally to allow the general public to pass along them
without obstruction and therefore, before agreeing to place a Pavement Café on the public
highway, the Council will ensure that the public's right to use the highway is not detrimentally
affected. Applicants are asked to consider whether the area they wish to licence might impact
negatively on the following, and if choosing to pursue an application, such matters must be
addressed within the application, where relevant:

e Width restrictions (consideration must be made for customers and pedestrians with
impaired vision, mobility difficulties and people pushing prams);

e Emergency vehicle access;

e Emergency exits access;

e Permitting easy and unrestricted access to the highway to Statutory Undertakers
maintaining or repairing services (gas, electricity, telephone etc);

e Street cleaning machines access and ease of movement;

e Kerbside parking;

e Unloading areas;

e Bus stops;

e Heavy pedestrian flow; and

e Visual impact.

Please note that the above list is not exhaustive and may be subject to change.

Page 23



5. Legislative Considerations

Highways Act 1980 - http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1980/66/contents

The area for which a Pavement Café Licence is sought must be a highway, as defined by s115A
of the Highways Act 1980, namely:

e A highway in relation to which a pedestrian planning order is in force;

e A restricted byway;

e A bridleway;

e A footpath (including a walkway as defined in section 35(2) of the Highways Act 1980);

e A footway;

e A subway constructed under section 69 of the Highways Act 1980;

e A footbridge constructed under section 70 of the Highways Act 1980;

¢ A highway whose use by vehicular traffic is prohibited by a traffic order but whose use by

other traffic is not prohibited or restricted or regulated by such an order; and
e To alocal Act walkway.

Under Part V11A s115E of the Highways Act 1980, the Council is not permitted to grant a licence
unless it first obtains the consent of the frontages with an interest, the Highway Authority and if
appropriate, obtained walkway consent. Consultation will therefore take place with relevant
authorities, such as Highways, persons or business owners who are likely to be affected
(frontages with an interest) and with the general public by publishing a Notice that is required to
be clearly displayed in a prominent place at or on the premises applying for Pavement Café
Licence for a period of not less than 28 consecutive days. The Notice shall summarise the
application and provides contact details for relevant persons/bodies who may wish to make a
Representation of objection or support.

Planning Permission

Any application or subsequent grant of a Pavement Café Licence does not remove any potential
requirement, or infer any permissions for planning consent.

Applicants are expected to have obtained the requisite planning permission, if required, in
advance of making an application for a Pavement Café Licence. If permission is not already in
place or where a change of use may be required, Applicants are encouraged to contact the
Council’'s Planning Department before submitting an application.

If an application is granted where it later transpires that planning consent was required and that
no such consentis in place, there will be a requirement that an application for the relevant consent
is made and the premises may be subject to planning enforcement action. Where such consent
is not applied for, is refused or in cases where there are ongoing planning enforcement issues
the Licensing Authority may suspend or revoke any Pavement Café Licence that has been issued.
If a licence is suspended or revoked there will be no refund of the fee paid for the licence or any
part of it.

Page 24


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1980/66/contents

Permanent structures on the highway associated with a Pavement Café, for example decking,
smoking shelters or awnings will not be permitted.

Pavement Cafés for the Supply of Alcohol and/or late Night Refreshments

Applicants wishing to provide alcohol (at any time) or hot food/hot beverages (between the hours
of 23:00 — 05:00) to their customers must obtain, if not already in place, a Licence or Certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003. If the cafe’s proposed area(s) is not within the scope of any existing
licence/certificate, i.e. it must be included within the Premises Licence or Club Premises
Certificate plan, issued under the Licensing Act 2003, then a full variation to the premises Licence
will be required to be made in accordance with the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.

Licensing Act 2003 - http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents

Crime & Disorder Act 1998 - http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/37/section/17

The Council will pay particular regard to any potential risk of crime and disorder arising directly or
indirectly from the granting of a Pavement Café Licence and will consult with Devon and Cornwall
Constabulary when considering such applications. Applicants are therefore expected to have
considered measures that will prevent disorder and minimise the impact and consequences of
any disorder.

Environmental Impact

The Council expects Applicants to have taken into consideration their immediate neighbours and
more generally the area in which their Pavement Café is located when preparing their application.
Where Pavement Cafés are located in residential areas or where there are other noise sensitive
premises nearby, Applicants and Licence Holder/s are expected to put in place suitable
management controls to ensure the operation of their business does not cause a nuisance. All
Applications will be subject to scrutiny by the Council’'s Public Protection Officers, with particular
attention paid to noise, odour and refuse matters.

6. Pavement Café Licences — Application Standards

When compiling an application, Applicants are encouraged to have regard to the list of suggested
standards/operating controls set out in this Section. Applicants are expected to demonstrate that
their proposals will make a positive contribution to the street scene; only well designed proposals
which respond to the site and its surroundings and produce a high quality result will be considered.

The Council requires that Pavement Cafés are located, designed and managed in a way that
protects the rights and safety of all users of the highway (particularly pedestrians) and recognises
that people with impaired vision, wheelchair users, people relying on mobility aids or people using
pushchairs can be particularly affected where businesses do not comply with these standards.

Page 25


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/37/section/17

Applicants are advised that before approving a new licence or granting a variation of an existing
permission for a Pavement Café Licence, the Council must obtain the consent of frontages with
an interest. The Council recommends that where necessary, Applicants consider discussing their
proposed applications with neighbouring businesses in advance of submitting an application in
order to try and alleviate/remedy potential objections.

Upon receipt, the Council will notify neighbouring premise in the vicinity of the proposed Pavement
Café area and submit the Application to the following named consultees for consideration:

e Devon & Cornwall Constabulary;

e Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service;
e Torbay Council’s Highways Department;

e Torbay Council’s Public Protection Team;
e Torbay Council’s Health & Safety Team;

e Torbay Council’s Food Safety Team.

In addition, the applicant MUST display a notice in a prominent position either on their Premises
or in the proposed Pavement Café area, so as it is visible to the general public, for a period of 28
consecutive days starting with the day following submission of the application to Torbay Council.
An example notice is provided at Appendix A.

Any of those named consultees or any other person may make Representation during the 28-day
consultation period. All such representations will be considered prior to determination of the
application and in some cases may result in refusal to grant, or where granted, additional
conditions and/or a reduction of the requested licensed area.

Where Applicants consider that their proposal to operate a Pavement Café may prove
controversial in terms of its size, location or the activities provided, it is recommended that they
contact those relevant consultees, listed above, in advance of making an application to seek their
advice and input at this earlier stage to avoid where possible, potential objections.

(i) Design & Layout

Whilst the Council does not intend to prescribe the design and layout of the Pavement Café it
licences, Applicants must have regard to the following key considerations that will be taken in
account by the Council when assessing applications:

e Pavement Cafés should generally occupy an area directly in front of and be visible from your
existing premises and should not extend beyond the width of your frontage. The layout and
size of the Pavement Café will depend upon the characteristics of the location of your
premises, the available space in which to place furniture and also the nature of your
premises.

Page 26



The safe and easy passage of pedestrians, particularly those with a disability, along the
highway is paramount when considering applications for Pavement Café and therefore, the
Council will generally require that a minimum of 2.0m clear highway is left between the edge
of the Pavement Café and the edge of any adjacent carriageway or vehicle route or to the
nearest fixed obstacle e.g. Bollard, Bench, Tree etc.

However, in areas of low pedestrian and/or traffic flow, the minimum clear highway
requirement will be reduced to 1.8 metres between the edge of the Pavement café area and
the edge of any adjacent carriageway or vehicle route or to the nearest fixed obstacle e.g.
Bollard, Bench, Tree etc. This will be assessed by a licensing officer upon application and
this may result in refusal of an application and/or a reduction in the area granted.

The location and type of existing street furniture will be taken into account when assessing
the size of the Pavement Café licensed areas as this may reduce the available space you
may be able to use. However it may be possible to relocate street furniture to accommodate
a Pavement Café licensed area. Where this is possible, please note that the cost of doing so
shall be met by the Applicant and payable in advance of such movement.

Sufficient space must be left between tables and chairs to allow unimpeded access and
circulation space for all customers within the licensed area, including those with pushchairs,
buggies, and members of the public relying on mobility aids, including wheelchairs.

The positioning of table and chairs should never discourage pedestrians from using the
highway outside the premises or cause pedestrians to walk on to or cross over vehicular
carriageways.

If the Pavement Café accommodates a pedestrian route passing through it, then this route
should be obvious to pedestrians, be as straight as possible and be completely free of any
obstructions.

The needs of other users of the highway must be taken into account. Tables and chairs
should not be placed so as to:

o Obstruct highway signs or other official signage; and/or

o Obstruct sightlines of road users.

Emergency routes from the Pavement Café and also adjacent buildings must not be
obstructed by the operation of the Pavement Café.

Adequate access for emergency services and statutory undertakers should be available at
all times.

Given that Pavement Cafés may be sited in many different locations, each case will be
determined on its own merits and applications that do not comply with the minimum
standards (as above) may be permitted, if it is deemed that they do not have a detrimental
effect on public safety.

Page 27



(i) Boundary & Means of Enclosure

e Applicants must as part of their application, clearly define the proposed boundary of their
Pavement Café by way of a site or location plan of the proposed cafe area and its relationship
to the building.

e Where Pavement Cafés are to be located on a main pedestrian thoroughfare, and where
public pedestrian access needs to be maintained, tables and chairs and all other furniture
must be enclosed in order to allow for easy, unhampered pedestrian movement and to contain
the Pavement Café area.

e The area forming the Pavement Café must be clearly demarcated by way of barriers or other
street furniture and/or planters in order to identify the agreed location and size of the
Pavement Café area and to help guide persons with visual impairment around its use. Any
items used as demarcation of the licensed area must be no less than 800mm in height.

e |If planters are being used as delineators, these should either be permanent highway street
furniture, which are either pre-existing or for which full planning permission has been obtained
or removable tub style ones. Non-permanent planters should not be left on the highway
outside the permitted hours of the Pavement Café Licence. Planters used as demarcation of
the licensed area must be no less than 800mm in height.

e The Council requires that Pavement Cafés in its Cumulative Impact Area, as defined in the
Licensing Statement of Principles 2016-21, which consist of four or more tables, must use
removable barriers of the design set out below.

e The Council’s preference is that these removable barriers are utilised by all Pavement Café
Licence Holder/s operating outside of the Cumulative Impact Area, however the use of
permanent highway street furniture or removable planters will be permitted to define a
licensed area.

No removable structures should be used or left in the highway that may cause a trip or safety
hazard to patrons or users of the highway.

N.B The use of any removable item placed on the highway to show demarcation will be the
sole responsibility of the Pavement Café Licence Holder/s and the Council will not accept
any liability in the event that injury or damage is caused.

Barriers

e Where barriers are provided, they must be no less than 800mm in height and have a gap of
no more than 150mm between the base (or tapping rail) and the ground. Barriers must be
capable of being temporarily fixed and must be of a style, design and type to be agreed by
the Council.

e A variety of means may be used to temporarily fix barriers in place, for example, lockable
wheels.

Page 28



(iii)

The Council considers the following to represent an appropriate barrier type:

o Stable and sturdy — not flimsy or capable of being warped or easily blown over in
inclement weather;

o Close textured, fence-like in appearance, with a tapping rail (i.e. a length of wood
positioned at the base of the barrier, designed to assist those with visual impairments)
— see sketch below;

o Lightweight for ease of movement/storage, as barriers will need to be taken down at
the end of each day, but sufficiently robust that they don’t get easily blown over;

o Of an appearance which will complement the environment and the setting of the
Pavement Café.

The Council will not usually permit the following barrier types to be used to delineate
Pavement Café areas:
o Post and chain barriers — as are potentially hazardous to pedestrians; and/or
o Hoop top garden fencing — as is too flimsy and not very tall therefore posing a potential
trip hazard.

The requirement for barrier types and/or other means of delineating Pavement Café areas
may differ from one Pavement Café to another and so it is recommended that Applicants
contact the Council to discuss their proposals in advance of making an application or
purchase.

Furniture

The Council encourages the creation and maintenance of high quality Pavement Cafés and
whilst choosing not to define a particular style of furniture or colour to be used by Licence
Holder/s, it reserves the right to reject an application or suspend/revoke a licence where the
operator uses furniture that is inappropriate or not fit for purpose. Applicants are encouraged
to consider the following guidelines when deciding which type of furniture to procure for their
Pavement Café:

Furniture Standards

o All tables, benches and chairs etc should be constructed from quality materials.

o Furniture colours should ideally be uniform and not be overly reflective where this may
pose a risk to road or highway users.

o Parasols should not be made of reflective material and should complement the furniture
colour/s chosen and positioned to avoid endangering users of the Pavement Café or
passing pedestrians and road users.

o Parasols must be removed at all times when the Pavement Café is not in operation.

o The furniture should enhance the street environment, and Applicants should ensure
that various styles of seating and tables are available, depending on the location of the
Pavement Café, to complement both a commercial and a more historic conservation
area setting.

Page 29



o Regard must be paid to the surface on which your furniture will stand. An uneven
surface, for e.g. cobbles, may require a more sturdy style of furniture than would be
necessary on a more even or paved surface.

The positioning of tables and chairs will be dictated by the availability of space outside the
premises concerned. Applicants are encouraged to consult the following guidelines, depending

on whether furniture will be placed directly in front the premises or at a distance:

Pavement Café Furniture Positioned Directly Fronting the Shop/Restaurant:

e The extent of the area of tables and chairs must be such that a minimum of 1.8m width highway
is still available to passing pedestrians (taking into account telephone boxes, litter
bins/receptacles, light columns etc).

Pavement Café Furniture Positioned Away From the Shop/Restaurant Front:

e Applicants will need to ensure that they leave no less than 2.0m width of unobstructed highway
between the front of the premises in which the Pavement Café is located and the outermost
boundary of the Pavement Café (where relevant, this calculation must also factor in tables and
chairs immediately fronting the premises).

e All furniture (to include menu boards ‘A’ Boards and outdoor heaters) must be contained within
the approved Pavement Café area and all such items must be removed at the terminal hour,
and stored securely inside the premises or in an alternative position off of the public Highway
e.g. an enclosed outdoor area of the premises such as a garden.

(iv)  Advertising

e You may wish to incorporate an element of advertising within the area of your Pavement Cafe.
For example, in any decoration included in the design of the means of enclosure or on
parasols. You are strongly advised to contact the Council’s Planning Department to ensure
that you obtain the requisite consent, where needed. Failure to obtain consent may result in
the use or placing of any advertising object or furniture being prohibited.

(V) Management of Pavement Cafe

e Where there is an existing requirement that the premises must operate a table service inside
the premises, the transfer of food and beverages to customers seated outside in the defined
Pavement Café area must also be made by way of table service.

e Where the premises sells alcohol by way of a Premises Licence granted under the Licensing

Act 2003 and that permission requires that waiter/waitress service must be in operation at all
times, that this same requirement will be applied to the Pavement Café area.

Page 30



(vi)

Where the premises sells alcohol by way of a Premises Licence granted under the Licensing
Act 2003 a premises is prohibited from serving alcoholic and non-alcoholic drinks in glass
bottles to persons using the Pavement Café areas at all times. The management must ensure
bottled drinks are de-cantered into to suitable drinking vessels at point of sale.

Where the premises sells alcohol by way of a Premises Licence granted under the Licensing
Act 2003 and this permission requires alcohol to be served in polycarbonate or shatterproof
glasses, or similar, that requirement must be adhered to when serving customers in the
Pavement Café Area.

Where the Pavement Café does not abut the frontage of the Applicants premises, the
Applicant must demonstrate in their application the operational controls in place to ensure
appropriate management of its customers, staff training and use of equipment — this must be
shown by way of a Health & Safety Risk Assessment.

The Pavement Café must be suitably managed by staff employed at the premises i.e. to
control the use of the area, to tidy away trays, crockery and other tableware as well as refuse,
and to maintain the area to as high a standard as is required inside the premises.

Environmental Considerations

The Council will not generally permit music to be provided over the level of ‘background music’
within the Pavement Café area. However, in certain circumstances, non-amplified live music
may be permitted within the Pavement Café area. Applications requesting the use of non-
amplified live music will attract increased scrutiny and as a direct result of such scrutiny, incur
a higher fee (please refer to the Council’s Discretionary Fees and Charges). It is also likely
that additional, tailored conditions will be applied to licences which permit non-amplified live
music. Such conditions may include;

Limits in the number of occasions on which non-amplified live music is permitted
o Arequirement that a noise management plan must be agreed with the Council’s Public
Protection Team
o A requirement that a minimum of 14 days advance notification of the date and time of
the planned use of non-amplified live music is given to the named consultees
o A restriction on the hours during which non-amplified live music may be made
available
This list is not exhaustive, although conditions will only be attached that are considered
appropriate in the individual circumstances of the application.

Where Applicants/Licence Holder/s wish to provide amplified live or recorded music within
the Pavement Café area, a separate application for a Temporary Amplified Music Permission
is required to cover the period during which amplified live or recorded music is intended. This
separate and distinct permission will attract a fee (please refer to the Council’s Discretionary
Fees and Charges). This will require a 10 working day consultation period in order to fully
consider such applications and to allow for the consultation and therefore, a minimum of 21
days advance notice is required.

Page 31



Applications for amplified live or recorded music will be managed in a similar way to
notifications under the Temporary Event Notice regime (Licensing Act 2003). The Council will
limit the number of Temporary Amplified Music Permission granted to any one premises during
a 12 month calendar year to five. Where a named consultee objects to the granting of this
application, the Council will have careful regard to the reasons of this objection and where it
deems it appropriate to do so; will refuse the application_without refund of the fee paid.

Adequate and unobtrusive lighting must be made available in the Pavement Café area unless
there is adequate lighting reflecting from the premises or from any existing external source.

There shall be no preparation or storage of food or drink outside the main premises. This
condition can only be varied through written consent of the Council. Applicants are therefore
strongly advised to contact the Council's Food & Safety Team for advice in advance of
submitting an application.

Where food is to be served, Applicants should consider providing parasols to protect food from
risk of contamination from birds etc.

Once customers have finished and left the premises, tables should be immediately cleared of
uneaten food and waste to minimise attraction from birds, flies etc.

The Pavement Café area should be kept clean and litter/food waste free, including the floor
area and Applicants are advised that they must provide suitable litter/refuse bins at all times
during the hours of operation or ensure that tables are regularly cleared and must also ensure
that they maintain suitable staff numbers to meet this requirement.

(vii) Smoke free

Whilst encouraging holders of Pavement Café Licences to offer exclusively smoke free
spaces, the Council’'s minimal acceptable standard is that Licence Holders who have
Pavement Café areas with more than 5 tables, must make provision for 50% of the Pavement
Café area to be smoke free at all times. As Pavement Cafés are family-friendly spaces, the
Council’'s principal reasons for adopting this stance are to reduce adult and children’s
exposure to smoking and to promote healthy behaviours.

All tables designated as smoke free, must have designated no smoking signs on them.

(viii) Hours of Operation

Applicants are asked to consider the surrounding environment, neighbouring business and
residential properties when setting out their proposed operating times. In order to minimise
associated crime and disorder and noise nuisance, the Council requires in general that
Pavement Cafés operate on Monday to Sunday within the period of 10:00 to 23:00. Applicants
wishing to apply for operating hours outside of these timings are advised to seek guidance
from the Council’s Public Protection Team and Devon & Cornwall Constabulary before
submitting an application.

Page 32



e Applications for opening hours beyond midnight will not be considered in any circumstances
and will be automatically be rejected.

Businesses are strongly encouraged to contact the Council’s Public
Protection Team and Police Licensing Officers in advance for guidance in
advance of making an application.

7. Grant of a Pavement Café Licence & Licence Conditions

If your application is successful, you will receive a “Pavement Café Licence” which will remain in
force indefinitely subject to payment of an annual fee or until the licence is surrendered, revoked
or falls due to change of premises ownership.

The Licence may be subject to a number of conditions, with which licence holders must fully
comply with, at all times. Conditions may be standard (applied to all premises), which are attached
at Appendix B to this Policy, or Specific, which may be applied upon grant of Licence if considered
appropriate following consideration of the application. Specific conditions may limit the
months/weeks/days of operation or may permit/restrict certain types of equipment and/or activity.

Where conditions are applied to your Licence, the Council reserves the right to change or add to
these and where this is the case, you will be notified in writing giving reasons as to why it is
considered necessary, in advance of the revised or new conditions having effect. The Standard
conditions, which may be varied from time to time, are attached at Appendix B.

Where an application does not attract a Representation(s), the Council will endeavour to process
that application within a week from the end date of the consultation period.

The grant of a Pavement Café Licence does not provide the holder/s of that licence with an
exclusive right to use the said area. Access must be provided for those times when cleaning,
maintenance and repairs to the public highway, traffic signals, and electric, gas and telephone
equipment etc is required, and also where access by emergency services is required. During
times when special events are taking place within the Bay, access to and/or use of the cafe area
may be also required.

Where Licence Holder/s are requested to move any tables, chairs or other items within their
Pavement Café area by Officers of the Council, Emergency Services or Statutory Undertakers,
they shall immediately comply with that request. Failure or delay to do so will place the holder/s
in breach of that licence.

Applicants and Licence Holder/s are asked to note-that the Council will not be held liable for any
loss of trade and/or income from the Pavement Café area, as a direct result of such activity

mentioned in the preceding two paragraphs or refund any of the licence fee paid.

Whilst all Pavement Café Licences are granted in perpetuity, there is an annual fee that falls due
on 15t April each year. Invoices will be sent out at least 4 weeks in advance of the due date.

Page 33



Temporary Suspension for Event’s or ‘one off’ situations

From time to time due to either a specific event e.g. Street Carnival, procession etc or for specific
unavoidable and/or necessary situations such as water/Gas works, whether pre-planned or
emergency or other Street repairs, it may be necessary to suspend permissions for use of the
Highway. In such cases as much advance warning as is practicably possible shall be given and
any permissions will be suspended or amended as appropriate. The Licensing Authority cannot
refund any part of the fee paid or provide any compensation payment in respect of such closures.

8. Appeals

There is no legal automatic right of appeal against a refusal to grant, vary or renew a Pavement
Café Licence, or to appeal against conditions imposed on a Licence under the Highways Act
1980. Notwithstanding this, the Council does offer an appeal process, where an Applicant or
Licence Holder is aggrieved by a decision of an Authorised Officer. This process does attract a
fee which is non-refundable, (please refer to the Council’s Discretionary Fees and Charges) and
this must be accompanied with the appeal. All appeals must be made in writing and addressed
to the Council’'s Environmental Health Manager (Commercial). An Applicant or Licence Holder
who has been refused a licence, variation or renewal in accordance with the Council’s Policy or
IS unhappy with a condition attached to his/her licence will be expected to demonstrate why there
should be an exception to the Council’s Policy in his/her particular case.

9. Enforcement

Periodic inspections of Pavement Café Licences may be conducted from time to time by
authorised officers of the Council or Police officers, to ensure that all terms and conditions of the
permission and various Acts of Parliament (i.e. Highways Act 1980, Environmental Protection Act,
Town & Country Planning Act and Licensing Act 2003 etc) are being adhered to.

Where minor breaches are found, the Council and/or the Police will aim to work with the Licence
Holder/s to find an agreed solution, where possible. If major or persistent breaches occur, then a
licence may be suspended or revoked.

Access to all areas of the Pavement Café area shall be granted to authorised representatives of
the Council for the purpose of inspection in accordance with the relevant licence condition.
Refusal to grant a reasonable request for access may result in the Pavement Café Licensing
being revoked with immediate effect, where the Council deems it appropriate to do so.

Where a Pavement Café Licence is revoked, the Council will not refund the fee paid for that
licence or any part of it.

Non Payment of Annual Fee

In cases where the annual fee remains unpaid for a period of more than 14 days from the date

that payment fell due, all such licences will blg revoked in writing by the Licensing Authority.
age 54



If at any time a licence becomes revoked, suspended, surrendered or for any reason lapsed, all
equipment, fixtures and furniture must be removed from the highway immediately. Any such items
not removed will be regarded as an unauthorised obstruction of the highway and dealt with in line
with the Council’s Policy on unauthorised Pavement Cafes.

Unauthorised Pavement Cafes

In cases where an unlicensed Pavement Café is detected, the occupier of the premises will be
written to in the first instance and required to remove furniture from the highway and to make
application for a Pavement Café Licence. Furniture is not permitted on the highway unless or until
application is made and subsequently granted.

If, after 7 days of the date of the above letter, an application has not been made and/or furniture
remains on the highway, a notice will be issued under section 143 of the Highways Act 1980
which will require removal of any item(s) as may be listed in such Notice. Failure to comply with
the Notice will result in removal of such item(s) following a period of one month, by authorised
officers of the Council. Costs of such action will be outlined in the Notice and will be payable by
the offender.

10. Contacts

If you would like to discuss your proposal for a Pavement Café with a member of the Licensing
Team, please contact us at the address below or by phone.

Address: Torbay Council, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR
Tel: 01803 208025

Page 35



Appendix A — Site Notice

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 (As
Amended) PART VIIA

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Torbay Councils Licensing
Authority has received an application to grant permission for the
placing of tables and chairs on the following footpaths or footways
and areas of public highway for the purpose of providing and
operating facilities for refreshment etc.

AREA OF PAVING OUTSIDE (name & address of premises):

PROPOSED SIZE OF PAVEMENT CAFE AREA:

Details of the application can be inspected on the Torbay Councils Website at
www.torbay.gov.uk

and at the Office of the Executive Head Community Safety, Torbay Council, Torquay Town
Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR between the hours of 9:30 am and 4:00 pm, Monday
to Friday

Any interested party or responsible authority wishing to make a representation in respect of
this application should do so in writing to the above address before the date specified below.

All representations submitted after the specified date cannot be considered

Date by which representatives must be received:-

Page 36



Appendix B — Standard Conditions

Please note that these conditions are not an exhaustive list, and each Application will be
considered on its own merits and bespoke conditions may be attached where deemed

appropriate.

PAVEMENT CAFE LICENCE — STANDARD CONDITIONS

This Pavement Café Licence is granted under Section 115E of the Highways Act 1980

This licence is issued to the individual(s) or Company named on it and is non transferrable.
Granting of the licence permits the placing of tables and chairs and associated furniture (as
permitted) only and does not absolve the holder(s) from any requirements under any other
legislation e.g. A Premises Licence in respect of the sale or supply of alcohol and/or late night
refreshments, or planning consent where this may be required.

Use and Maintenance of the Highway

1.

The Licence Holder/s shall not make any excavations or indentations of any descriptions
whatsoever in the surface of the highway or place or fix any equipment of any description in
the said surface.

. The Licence Holder/s retains responsibility for carrying out the reinstatement of the highway

in the event of any damage to the highway occurring as a result of the Pavement Café activity.
The permanent surface reinstatement shall be carried out to the satisfaction of Torbay
Council, at the applicant's expense and guaranteed for a minimum period of two years.

The Licence Holder/s shall indemnify Torbay Council against all actions, proceedings, claims,
demands and liability which may at any time be taken, made or incurred in consequence of
the use or presence of the chairs and tables and other objects and for this purpose must take
out at the Licence Holder’s expense a policy of insurance approved by the Council in the sum
of at least £2,000,000 in respect of any one event (£5,000,000 total cover) and must produce
to the Council on request the current receipts for the premium payment and confirmation of
the renewals of the policy.

The Licence Holder/s shall not place on the highway any furniture or equipment or
advertisement other than as permitted by Torbay Council and must maintain the same in a
clean and tidy condition and not place them so as to obstruct the entrance to or exit from any
premises.

Notwithstanding the specific requirements in Condition 4 above, the Licence Holder/s shall
not do or suffer anything to be done in or on the highway which in the opinion of Torbay
Council may be or become a danger, nuisance or annoyance to or cause damage or
inconvenience to the said Council or the owners or occupiers of any adjacent or neighbouring
premises or to members of the public.

The Licence Holder/s shall suspend the operation of the Pavement Café at the request of an
Authorised Officer of the Council to enable any street works to be carried out on or near the
permitted location. Such works (unless due to an emergency or unforeseen circumstance)
shall be notified to the licence holder(s) in advance.

Where repair or maintenance of the pavement/highway is to be undertaken, Torbay Council
will not be liable for any loss of trade and/or income whilst repair/maintenance is carried out
and cannot reimburse the fee paid or any part of it. The Licence Holder/s must allow the
Council reasonable access for such works.

Page 37




8. The Licence Holder/s recognise that Torbay Council shall be entitled to suspend the licence
on a temporary basis on the occurrence of a special event, as a result of police intelligence
to avoid instances of disorder or the potential for disorder, or for any other circumstance
which the Council deems necessary. Torbay Council shall not in any circumstances
whatsoever be liable for any loss of trade and/or income or refund any fees (or part thereof)
to the Licence Holder/s in respect of such a suspension.

Delineation of Pavement Cafe Area & Use of Furniture

9. Where there are a total of more than 4 tables in use or, in any case when a Pavement Café
falls within the Council’'s Cumulative Impact Area, the Licence Holder/s shall, place
removable physical barriers within the perimeter of the licensed area which must be in
accordance with the type or design as indicated in Paragraph 7 of the Pavement Café
Licensing Policy. Such barriers must remain in place during all times that the Pavement Café
is in use the licence holder(s) shall ensure that such barriers are removed at the end of each
daily period of use and at the expiry, surrender or revocation of this Licence.

10.Tables and chairs shall not be affixed to the highway and should not be stored on the highway
when they are not in use, e.g. before or after the Pavement Café is open. When not in use,
tables and chairs must be stored in the premises, or in a private outdoor area, such as a
garden.

11. Furniture should be safely stored away from public areas at the end of each daily period of
use in such a location where it is safe, secure and unable to be accessed by members of the
public.

12.1f planters are being used as delineators, these should either be permanent highway street furniture,
which are either pre-existing or for which full planning permission has been obtained or removable
tub style ones. Unless permanent and benefitting from the appropriate planning consent, these
must not be left on the highway outside of permitted hours.

13.Where gas heaters are used, the connections, including the regulator, hose & clips must be
fit for purpose and checked on a regular basis and not be exposed in such a way that they
are a trip hazard. In cases where such heaters (or similar) are used, it will be expected that
there will be an adequate risk assessment to cover such use, including (but not limited to)
fire and public safety matters. The risk assessment must be produced to an authorised officer
of the Council or any Police/Fire officer upon request.

Management of the Pavement Café

(not necessary as this forms part of the licence)
14.The Licence Holder/s shall ensure that customers who purchase alcohol for consumption on
the premises shall not consume such items outside of the permitted area

15. All customers using the Pavement Café will be required to be seated. Vertical drinking is not
permitted within the licensed area at any time. Removal of tables and chairs and/or the
submission of a Temporary Event Notice under provision of the Licensing Act 2003 does not
constitute suspension of permissions granted under this licence.

16.Where a Pavement Café Licensed Premises also holds a Premises Licence under the
Licensing Act 2003, all conditions of the Premises Licence will apply to the Pavement Café
area in addition to the Pavement Café Standard Conditions.

17.The licence holder/(s) shall ensure that all drinking glasses in which drinks are served shall
be of strengthened glass and no drink shall be served in a glass bottle from which it is
intended or likely that a customer shall drink.

18.The Licence Holder/s shall ensure that adequate supervision by means of a waiter/waitress
service is provided over the permitted area during the times of operation.

Page 38




19.The Licence Holder/s shall ensure that where menu boards, ‘A’ boards or similar are provided
that these are sympathetic in both size and design to the building/premises and its setting
and not situated outside of the designated Pavement Café area.

20.The Licence Holder/s shall maintain the area shown on the plan attached to this Licence and
the immediately adjacent area in a clean and tidy condition during the permitted hours and
shall leave the same area/s in a clean and tidy condition and unobstructed at the end of each
daily period of use and on revocation or surrender of this permission.

21.The Licence Holder/s shall provide litter bins or similar receptacles for the deposit of cartons,
wrappers, containers and similar discarded items and ensure that bins/other receptacles are
emptied daily or shall ensure that staff members regularly clear tables within the licensed
area.

22.The Licence Holder/s shall remove all furniture or equipment, litter bins or other articles
placed on the highway in accordance with this Permission at the end of each daily period of
use and at the expiry, surrender or revocation of this Permission.

23.The Licence Holder/s shall ensure adequate and unobtrusive lighting is made available in the
Pavement Café area.

24.The Licence Holder/s shall not prepare or store food or beverages outside the main business
premises (i.e. not in the Pavement Café area). This Condition may be varied only with the
written consent of an Authorised Officer of Torbay Council.

25.The Licence Holder/s shall ensure that where there are more than 5 tables, 50% or more of
the Pavement Café area is designated as smoke free at all times and that non-smoking signs
are placed upon each table.

26.Live and recorded music (both amplified and non-amplified) is not authorised in the Pavement
Café area unless specifically authorised under separate application. In cases where
application is made and subsequently granted, additional conditions will be attached to the
licence as considered appropriate for the prevention of public nuisance. Any breach of this
condition will be considered under the Council’s Enforcement Policy and may result in
suspension or revocation of this licence in addition to any other penalties as may be
appropriate.

Duty to Display & Produce Licence

27.The Licence Holder/s shall ensure that a copy of the Pavement Café Licence and
accompanying Conditions is at all times on prominent display within the Pavement Café
premises.

28.The Licence Holder/s shall produce this Permission on demand when so required by an
Authorised Officer of Torbay Council a Police Officer or a Police Licensing Officer.

Duty to Notify Council of Changes to Licence or Holder/s Information

29.1f the named Licence Holder changes his/her/their personal details (e.g. name or address),
the Licence Holder is obliged to notify Torbay Council in writing of the specifics of those
changes within 5working days of that change.

30.The Licence Holder/s must notify Torbay Council’s Licensing & Public Protection Team in
writing of any changes to any part of the Pavement Cafe operation, including furniture, other
items, and area or operating hours, prior to making any such change. Such changes may
necessitate the Licence Holder/s to apply for a new or revised licence.

Page 39




Non Payment of Annual Fees

31.This licence is granted in perpetuity and is subject to an annual fee. The annual fee becomes
due and payable in full on 15t April annually.

32.Licences will be revoked in writing by the Licensing Authority if the annually fee has not been
paid following the expiration of a period of 14 days, from the date that the original payment
fell due.

33.If at any time a Licence becomes revoked, surrendered, suspended or for any reason lapsed,
all equipment, fixtures and furniture must be removed from the highway immediately.

34.1f following revocation, surrender, suspension or lapse of a licence, any equipment, fixtures
or furniture remains on the highway, this will be regarded as unauthorised obstruction of the
highway and will be dealt in line with the Council’s Policy on unauthorised Pavement Café
areas.

35.There is no provision for renewal of a Pavement Café Licence. In cases where a Pavement
Café Licence is revoked, surrendered or lapsed, permissions may only be reinstated
following an application and subsequent granting of a new licence. Where a Pavement Café
Licence is revoked, the Council will not refund the fee paid for that licence or any part of it.

NON-COMPLIANCE with any Condition of this Licence may render the Licence Holder/s’
liable to a formal written Notice under section 115K of the Highways Act 1980, and failure
to comply with such a Notice may cause this Licence to be revoked.

Unauthorised Pavement Cafes may render offenders liable to a formal written Notice
under section 143 of the Highways Act 1980, failure to comply with such a notice may
result in the forced removal of any obstruction of the Highway by authorised officers of
the Council and offenders will be liable for the costs associated with removal and storage.

Notes:
Section 115K of the Highways Act, 1980 provides as follows:
115K — Failure to comply with terms of permission

(1) If it appears to a Council that a person to whom they have granted a Permission under
Section 115E of this Act has committed any breach of the terms of that permission, they
may serve a notice on him requiring him to take such steps to remedy the breach as are
specified in the notice within such time as is so specified.

(2) If a person whom a notice is served under sub-section (1) above fails to comply with the
notice, the Council may take the steps themselves.

(3) Where a Council have incurred expenses in the exercise of the power conferred on them
by sub-section (2) above, those expenses, together with interest at such reasonable rate
as the Council may determine from the date of service of a notice of demand for the
expenses, may be recovered by the Council from the person on whom the notice under
sub-section (1) above was served.

Page 40




Appendix C

in

Flow chart to understand what applications you may need for providing amplified music

Pavement Café Licensed Area

Pavement Cafe Licence
(either with no music or
with non-amplified music)

A

Do you have you a Premises Licence
to sell alcohol under Licensing Act

20037

NO

e

YES (You therefore have an
Exemption for LIVE music)

Do you have you a Premises
Licence for Live or Recorded

Music under Licensing
2003?

Act

I

NO

Yes

\

You only need to apply
for a Temporary

You need to apply for
a Temporary Amplified
Music Permission
AND
A Temporary Event
Notice under Licensing
Act 2003

Amplified Music
Permission
(Max five day per
year)

Page 41



PAVEMENT CAFE LICENSING POLICY 2019-2024: CONSULTATION FEEDBACK SUMMARY

DATE OF RESPONDENT SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATION OFFICER COMMENTS
RECEIPT DETAILS
1 19 June | Permit Hold In agreement with all changes but raised concern over the | Whilst the licensing team does not licence or
2019 placing of A boards outside of a Pavement Café area. control the use of A boards currently as such, there
are already conditions attached to each licence to
require that A boards remain within the Pavement
Café area.
This means that enforcement officers may treat the
placing of A boards outside of a Pavement Café
permitted area as a breach of condition, therefore
this concern is already addressed.
o
52 19 June Permit Holder | In full agreement on all proposals especially the proposed | No amendment warranted to the proposed Policy
D 2019 process for dealing with unlicensed or unauthorised tables and | as the respondent is in full agreement.
B chairs. The respondent states that this has not been fair for a
N long time.
3 25 June | Permit Holder | The respondent is concerned that the matters in section 7 of | This clause is already in the Policy and apart from
2019 the proposed Policy relating to temporary suspension of a | one occasion (the upgrade of Fleet street) has

permit, may leave the possibility open for the Council to
suspend permits for Council events.

never been used. Permission granted for use of the
highway can already be withdrawn for any reason.
This alteration to the Policy is included in order to -
clarify the limited circumstances where permission -
may be temporarily suspended. It is not intended to
create a situation where this would become the
norm. For this reason no alteration to the wording
is proposed.

Z XIpuaddy

g wa)| epuaby



Agenda ltem 9

ORBAY
COUNCIL /
Briefing Report Public Agenda Item: Yes
No:
Title: Decisions taken in relation to Licensing Act 2003 applications

under delegated powers

Wards All
Affected:
To: Licensing Committee On: 8th August 2019

Contact Officer. Gary O’Shea
Telephone: 01803 207631
Y8 E.mail: Gary.oshea@torbay.gov.uk

1. What we are trying to achieve

1.1 To inform Members of the decisions taken in relation to Licensing Act 2003
applications by the Assistant Director Community Services under delegated
powers.

2. Recommendation(s) for decision

2.1 That Members note the decisions made under delegated powers so that they
maintain a general overview of the current licensing situation under the Licensing
Act 2003.

3. Key points and reasons for recommendations

3.1 Torbay Council’s “Statement of Licensing Policy” (adopted January 2016) details
the scheme of delegation under the Licensing Act 2003. This Policy also requires
that the Licensing Committee receive regular reports (section 1.19) on delegated
decisions, so that it can maintain a general overview of the current licensing
situation.

For more detailed information on this proposal please refer to Appendix A.

Steve Cox
Environmental Health Manager (Commercial)

Page 43



Appendix A — Supporting information to Report

Al.

Al.l

Al.2

Al.2

Al.3

Al4

Introduction and history
The Licensing Act 2003 (The Act) came into force on the 24" November 2005.

As of 315t March 2019 Torbay Council had 794 Premises Licences/Club Premises
Certificates; this number is net of licences issued against those that have lapsed
or been surrendered or revoked since the Act came into force. This figure
represents a net increase of 1 on the previous 6 month period.

In the 6 months between 15 October 2018 and 315t March 2019, the Licensing
Sub Committee has held 3 hearings, which means that the total hearings held
since implementation of the Licensing Act 2003 (in November 2015) is 591.

Additionally up to 31t March 2019, 3451 Personal Licences have been issued, of
which 126 were between 15t October 2018 and 315t March 2019.

From 1St October 2018 to 315t March 2019 Torbay Council has dealt with the
following applications under the Licensing Act 2003.

Premises/Club Premises Applications — New Tos;[al
Premises/Club Premises Applications — Variations 6
Premises/Club Premises Applications — Minor Variations 15
Personal Licences 126
Hearings (Licensing Committee/Sub-Committee) 3
Appeals (to Magistrates Court) 2
Temporary Event Notices 145
Reviews of Licences (Licensing Committee/Sub-Committee) 4
Transfers of Premises Licences/Club Premises Certificates 31
Transfers of Designated Premises Supervisors 64

The number of Premises Licence applications being received by the Licensing and
Public Protection Team over the stated 6 month period was 9 which fits with the
normal average of around 20 per annum.

The number of Personal Licences issued in the 6 months between October 2018

and March 2019 was 126, which represents a significant increase given that the
entire previous 12 month period saw a total of 122.

Page 44



Al5

Al.6

Al.6

A2.

A2.1

A3.

A3.1

A4.

Ad.1l

AS.

The number of Temporary Events Notices (TENs), was 145 for the stated 6 month
period. Whilst this represents only around 40% of the usual annual average, it is
worth noting that the reporting period covers the winter months and this is
therefore, quite consistent with previous years given that the summer is the more
popular time for submitting TENS.

There have been two appeals submitted against Licensing Sub-Committee
decisions in the 6 months between October 2018 and March 2019. There have
been 31 appeals in total in the nearly 14 years since the Licensing Act 2003 came
into force, 14 of these have arisen from Review decisions.

The latest 2 appeals were:

Churston Court Hotel, which followed the removal of the Live Music Act exemption
from the scope of the Premises Licence, this was eventually withdrawn by the
licence holder and resulted in an award of costs to the Council of £5410.80.

Jolly Judge, which is currently ongoing and follows the revocation of the Premises
Licence following a review submitted by Devon and Cornwall Police. This matter
is due to be heard by Magistrates on 23 and 24" September 2019.

Transfers of Licences and Designated Premises Supervisors variations are
around the average level that is expected.

Risk assessment of preferred option
Outline of significant key risks

There are no risks associated with this report.
Options

None. Members cannot change the Officer decisions but need to be appraised of
the issues in accordance with the Licensing Policy.

Summary of resource implications
There is a fairly static picture, so the income has remained stable.

The fees are set by the Secretary of State under powers given in the Act to set
regulations (Statutory Instrument 2005/79 entitled ‘The Licensing Act 2003 (Fees)
Regulations 2005).

There has been no update or increase in the fees set since implementation in
November 2005 and therefore the real terms value of income received under the
Act diminishes year on year through the effects of inflation.

Section 121 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, contained a
power for Licensing Authorities to locally set fees. Unfortunately regulations have
never been passed to enact this provision and as such, the centrally set fees
remain in force at the same level as when the legislation was first enacted.

What impact will there be on equalities, environmental sustainability and
crime and disorder?

Page 45



A5.1 There are no equalities or environmental sustainability implications, however one
of the Licensing Objectives is the “Prevention of Crime and Disorder”, so the work
will have a positive impact on reducing this.

A6. Consultation and Customer Focus

A6.1 There is public consultation on all new and variation applications for a 28 day
period in the case of new premises licence applications and full variations and 10
working days consultation in respect of a minor variation.

A7. Arethere any implications for other Business Units?

A7.1 There are no significant implications for other Business Units, though the Local
Children’s Safeguarding Board and several teams within Community Safety are
consultees on the applications.

Annexes

Documents available in members’ rooms

None

Background Papers:

The following documents/files were used to compile this report:

None

Page 46



Agenda Iltem 10

ORBAY
COUNCIL /
Briefing Report Public Agenda Item: Yes
No:
Title: Decisions taken in relation to Gambling Act 2005 applications

under delegated powers

Wards All
Affected:
To: Licensing Committee On: 8th August 2019

Contact Officer. Gary O’Shea
Telephone: 01803 207631
‘B Email: Gary.oshea@torbay.gov.uk

1. What we are trying to achieve

1.1 To inform Members of the decisions taken in relation to Gambling Act 2005
applications in Torbay by the Assistant Director Community Services under
delegated powers.

2. Recommendation(s) for decision

2.1 That Members note the decisions made under delegated powers so that they
maintain a general overview of the current gambling situation under the Gambling
Act 2005 in Torbay.

3. Key points and reasons for recommendations

3.1  Torbay Council’s “Gambling Policy Statement” (adopted January 2019) details the
scheme of delegation under the Gambling Act 2005. This Policy also requires that
the Licensing Committee receive regular reports (Section 9.14) on delegated
decisions so that it can maintain a general overview of the current gambling
situation in Torbay.

For more detailed information on this proposal please refer to Appendix A.

Steve Cox
Environmental Health Manager (Commercial)

Page 47



Appendix A — Supporting information to Report

Al. Introduction and history

Al.1 The Gambling Act 2005 came into force on 15t September 2007. Torbay Council,
as the Licensing Authority are responsible for the Premises Licences issued under
the legislation, along with permits for gaming machines in a number of Premises,
notably Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres (UFEC’s), Clubs and Pub
Premises. The Gambling Commission are responsible for Operator Licences and

Personal Licences.

Al.2 From 30th April 2007, Torbay Council became responsible for the administration
and issuing of Premises Licences, UFEC’s and various permits. Below are the

applications dealt with between 15t October 2018 and 31t March 2019.

Total
Casino Premises Licences — New 0 1)
Casino Premises Licences — Variation 0
Bingo Premises Licences — New 0 (8)
Bingo Premises Licences — Variation 0
Betting Premises Licences — New 0 (16)
Betting Premises Licences — Variation 0
Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences — New 0 a7
Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences — Variation 0
Family Entertainment Centre Premises Licences — New 0 2
Family Entertainment Centre Premises Licences — Variation |0
Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine 0 (19)
Permit — New
Gaming Machine Noatifications for 2 or less Machines 1 (122)
Gaming Machine Applications for 3 or more Machines 1 (22)
Temporary Use Notices 0
Reviews of Licences (Licensing Committee/Sub-Committee) | O
Hearings (Licensing Committee/Sub-Committee) 0
Appeals (to Magistrates Court) 0

Page 48




Al.3

Al4

A2.

A2.1

A3.

A3.1

A4.

A4.1

A5.

A5.1

AG.

AG6.1

The numbers in brackets are the total number of each type of Premises Licences
issued.

The six month period between 15t October 2018 and 315t March 2019 has seen no
gambling premises applications of any kind. Whilst we would normally expect one
or two variations, this is not significantly unusual given that most premises are
long established and rarely change hands.

There has been 1 notification for gaming machines in pubs and 1 application for 3
or more.

Given recent changes to the maximum stakes for fixed odds betting terminals,
some of the existing Betting Shops (16 in total at present) potentially looking to
close as they have suggested that this will affect their income. In addition, two of
the largest operators have merged together and it is unlikely that they will wish to
retain every High Street shop.

Gambling, whilst an important area of work for the Licensing Authority, is not
traditionally a function that attracts large quantities of applications. The majority of
the work of the Licensing Team with regard to the Gambling function is undertaken
through compliance visits, which ensures that operators continue to operate in a
responsible manner.

Risk assessment of preferred option

Outline of significant key risks

This report is for information, therefore, there are no risks associated with this
report.

Options

None. Members cannot change the Officer decisions but need to be appraised
of the issues in accordance with Torbay Council’s Gambling Policy.

Summary of resource implications

There is no significant additional resource implications from routine Gambling Act
work.

What impact will there be on equalities, environmental sustainability and
crime and disorder?

There are no equalities or environmental sustainability implications, however two
of the Licensing Objectives are “Preventing Gambling being a source of Crime and
Disorder” and “Protecting Children and Vulnerable Adults”, so the work should
have a positive impact on reducing this.

Consultation and Customer Focus

There is public consultation on all New and Variation Premises Licence
applications for a 28 day period before any licence is granted.

Page 49



A6.2 Applications that attract representation during the consultation period, would be
considered by a Licensing Sub-Committee, however, applications where no
representations are received, must be granted under officer delegation.

A7. Arethere any implications for other Business Units?

A7.1 There are no significant implications for other Business Units, though the Local
Children’s Safeguarding Board is a consultee on all applications.

Annexes

None

Documents available in members’ rooms

None

Background Papers:
The following documents/files were used to compile this report:

None

Page 50



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 Hackney Carriage Tariff Increase
	2019 08 08 HC Tariff increase App 1
	2019 08 08 HC Tariff increase App 2

	8 Pavement Cafe Policy
	2019 08 08 - Pavement Cafe Policy 2019 - App 1
	2019 08 08 Pavement Cafe Policy 2019-24 Summary of Representation App 2

	9 Delegated Decision Report - Licensing Act 2003
	10 Delegated Decision Report - Gambling Act 2005

